
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, June 16, 2025 — 2:00 P.M. 
 

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to attend its meetings both in-person 
at its Board Room and virtually via livestream. Please note that in the event of technical 
issues that disrupt the meeting livestream or receipt of public comments by phone or 
email, the meeting will continue, unless otherwise required by law, such as when a Director 
is attending the meeting virtually pursuant to certain provisions of the Brown Act. 
 

 
Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:   
 
Members of the public can address the Board of Directors during “Public Comments” or on specific 
agenda items, may do so as instructed below.  All comments will be subject to a limit of three (3) minutes. 
 

• Making Public Comment for In-Person Attendance: Members of the public who wish to observe or to 
address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. A Request to Speak 
slip must be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the meeting (if possible). 

• Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for 
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary at 
publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the Board Secretary will 
call when the board is ready to hear public comments; or 

• Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at the 
meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org and they will 
be read aloud during the public comment period; or 

• Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off or mailed in advance of 
the meeting at the District’s Administrative located at 29300 Valley Center Rd., Valley Center, CA 
92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day. 

 

These public comment procedures supersede any District public comment policies and procedures to 
the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are required, such 
persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by email to the Board 
Secretary at boardsecretary@vcmwd.org. 
 

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the 
District’s website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the 
link listed below “live stream” on the page.   

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made 
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s 
website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board 
Meeting Documents.  

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to the 
agenda (Government Code Section 54954.2). 

mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  2     June 16, 2025 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but within 
the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda will be received 
during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code Section 54954.3). 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is requested 
by a Board member, staff or member of the audience. 

 
1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 2, 2025;  

2. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements; 

3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending April 30, 2025; and 

4. Request Approval of Resolution No. 2025-16 Supporting the Nomination of Carol Lee 
Gonzales-Brady, Rancho California Water District, for the Office of ACWA Vice President. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM(S) 
 
It is not necessary to notify the Board Secretary if a member of the public wishes to speak on items listed 
on the agenda as public hearings. Public hearings will begin at the time stated in the notice, or as soon 
thereafter as the matter can be heard. Opportunities for the public to address the Board will be given after 
the President opens the hearing. 

 
5. Public Hearing to Review Status of Vacant Positions as Required by AB 2561: 
 

A public hearing will be held to review the status of vacant positions, as required by AB 2561. 
 

a. Open Public Hearing 

b. Report by Director of Finance and Administration 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. Close Public Hearing 

e. Questions/Discussion 

f. If desired, motion to receive and file the report on the status of vacant positions 

 
ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

6. Implementation Schedule for the Proposed SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge for the FY 

2025-26 Budget: 
 

Board direction regarding the implementation schedule for the proposed SDCWA Fixed 

Transportation Charge for the FY 2025-26 will be considered. 
 

a. Report by Director of Finance and Administration 

b. Discussion 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. If desired, provide direction on implementation of proposed charge 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  3     June 16, 2025 

7. Request Approval of Mutual Services Agreement Exhibit A – State and Federal Representation: 
 

Approval of Exhibit “A” to the Mutual Services Agreement Between FPUD, RMWD, YMWD and 

VCMWD – Proposal for State and Federal Representation, will be requested. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 

b. Discussion 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. If desired, approve Exhibit “A” to the “Mutual Services Agreement Between FPUD, RMWD, 

YMWD, and VCMWD 

 

 
INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 

 

8. Energy Program Overview: 
 

An overview of the District’s Energy Program will be provided. 
 

a. Report by Director of Operations 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
9. General Information: 
 

General Information items will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTING* 
 

* Directors must provide brief reports on meetings/events attended in the performance of their official duties for which 
compensation or reimbursement is provided.   Authority: Government Code Section 53232.3. 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider litigation, 
personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege. Discussion 
of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed session (per Government 
Code § 54956.9). 

 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  4     June 16, 2025 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the 
public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as provided 
by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided to a majority of the Board of 
Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be available for 
public inspection on the District’s website. The agenda is available for public review on the District’s 
website, http://www.vcmwd.org.  
 

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Kirsten Peraino, Board 
Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, this agenda will be 
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 
202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the 
Board Secretary at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible. 
 

 

— End of Agenda — 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org


 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, June 2, 2025 — 2:00 P.M. 

  
The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to order 
by President Ferro at 2:00 PM. In the Board Room at 29300 Valley Center Rd.; Valley Center, 
CA 92082, and livestreamed on the District’s website at www.vcmwd.org.  

 
ROLL CALL 
 

Board Members Present: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Smith, Ness, and Stehly. 
 

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, District Engineer Grabbe, Director of Finance and 
Administration Pugh, Director of IT Pilve, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, Special 
Projects & Regulatory Compliance Manager Nichols, Manager of Accounting/Deputy Director of 
Finance & Administration Velasquez; Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Peraino, and General 
Counsel Nick Norvell present in-person. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
 

President Ferro established for the record the process by which public comments are received by 
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting. It was announced that no 
public comments had been received for this meeting. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience. 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, May 19, 2025; and 

2. Audit Demands for Check Nos. 171639 – 171699 from May 10 – 23, 2025; 

3. Approval of Resolution No. 2025-13 to Set the District’s FY 2025-26 Appropriation Limit 
for Proceeds from Taxes per Article XIIIB of the State Constitution; and 

4. Approval of Resolution No. 2025-14 to Adopt the FY 2025-26 Annual Water Supply and 
Demand Assessment. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Ness; and unanimously carried, the previously listed 
consent calendar items were approved. 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM(S) 
 

5. Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Proposed Water Availability Charges for Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2025-26 and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-05 to Amend the District’s 
Administrative Code: 

 

A public hearing to receive written and oral input on the adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-05, 
regarding proposed revisions to Water Availability Charges for Fiscal Year (FY) 2025-26, was 

http://www.vcmwd.org/


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

2   June 2, 2025 

opened by President Ferro at 2:04 PM.   Annually, the District holds a public hearing to receive 
public testimony on the water availability charge of $10 per acre with a $10 per parcel minimum, 
reported Director of Finance and Administration Pugh. This charge has been in place at the 
same rate since FY 1995-96. The availability charge will generate a dedicated source of 
revenue of approximately $564,000 for FY 2025-26 which has been used for the District’s debt 
service and ongoing capital requirements.  
 

Notice of the public hearing was published in the local paper as required by law.  Letters were 
also mailed to all new property owners within the District. The District received no written 
protests or phone calls, noting no new deferral applications were received. No public comments 
were received after the opportunity for public comment was provided. The public hearing was 
closed at 2:09 PM. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Holtz, seconded by Ness; and unanimously carried, the following 
Ordinance was approved: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-05 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT  

ESTABLISHING WATER AVAILABILITY CHARGES FOR  
FY 2025-26 ON ALL PROPERTY WITHIN THE DISTRICT 

 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 
 

  AYES: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Smith, Ness, and Stehly 
  NOES: None 

 ABSENT: None 

 
ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

6. Review of Proposed Revisions to the Meter Capacity Charges and Request to Set 
Public Hearing Date to Consider Approval of New Charges:   
 

Proposed increases in Water Meter Capacity Charges (including Specific Benefit Area Capacity 
Charges) were presented by Special Projects & Regulatory Compliance Manager Alisa Nichols.  In 
addition to the San Diego County Water Authority (“SDCWA") Meter Capacity and Annexation 
Charges (which are set independently from the District), the District’s Water Meter Capacity 
Charges are collected for new water meters purchased from the District and a per acre District 
Annexation Charge is collected from properties requesting annexation to the District. Modifications 
to the approach since last year include: 
 

• Added Value of Capital Improvements completed during the year, which exclude contributed 
capital. 

• Updated Asset Values to reflect the current Replacement Cost New Less Depreciation value. 

• Updated the percentage of the Asset Values related to Usage Based Revenue versus Land 
Based Revenue. 

• Updated the Equivalent ¾-inch Meter count to exclude Inactive Meters. 
 

The last adjustment to Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges was approved in April 2024. Staff’s 
recommendations are based on the water system and non-facility asset values as of June 30, 
2024.  Key considerations in determining the value of the water system assets include capital 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

3   June 2, 2025 

improvement reserves, the value of District land, adjustments made to the useful life of the facility 
assets that do not include the value of contributed capital, adjustments for the amount of the asset 
value attributable to property tax and Availability Charge revenue and the exclusion of value 
associated with wastewater facilities, reminded Ms. Nichols.  Staff proposed an 8.7% increase to 
the Water Meter Capacity Charge, increasing from $5,705 to $6,203, for a ¾-inch water meter. 

 
An Incremental Component to the Water Meter Capacity Charge is added for projects if within a 
Specific Benefit Area and apply to projects that fit the following criteria: 1) Projects constructed by 
the District that benefit future connections in a specific area, or 2) Contributed Capital Projects 
(Developer Projects with Reimbursement Agreements) that benefit future connections in a specific 
area. In situations where an Incremental Component Charge applies, a Specific Benefit Area 
(“SBA”) is established and a Specific Benefit Area Capacity Charge (“SBACC”) is separately 
approved; conceptually during the project planning/approval process, based on estimated project 
costs (with final approval after the project is completed, when all costs are known). The SBACC is 
added to the Meter Capacity Charge for new meters on properties only within the SBA. The 
proposed Incremental Charges for the current SBACC are summarized in the following table: 

 

 
 

Annexation Charges are collected from properties requesting annexation to the District. Property 
owners outside of the District have not paid Availability Charges or tax revenues to the District, and 
as such, would need to buy-in to the value attributed to those revenue sources to be on an equal 
basis as customers within the District. Using a similar “Buy-In” methodology as the Water Meter 
Capacity Charge, the Annexation Charge is determined as described in the District’s Administrative 
Code §220.6.  The same amount deducted from the water facility asset value for taxes and 
Availability Charges used in determining the Water Meter Capacity Charge is the primary 
component of the corporate asset value used to determine the Annexation Charge 
recommendation. Using the revised methodology, a 2.6% decrease in the Annexation Charge from 
$1,443 to $1,406 per acre was recommended.  
 

Board input and comments received from this meeting will be incorporated into the final 
recommendation, to be presented at the July 7, 2025 Board meeting. If approved at that time, the 
Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges would become effective immediately. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Smith; and unanimously carried, motion to set 
public hearing date for July 7, 2025 was approved. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

4   June 2, 2025 

7. Preview of the FY 2025-26 Annual Assessments for the Woods Valley Ranch Sewer 
Service Area and Request to Set Public Hearing Date to Put the Service Charge and 
Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge Assessments on the Property Tax Roll: 

 

The date for a public hearing to receive input and consider collecting the FY 2024-25 Woods 
Valley Ranch (WVR) annual Sewer Service Charge (Service Areas 1 and 2) and the annual WVR 
Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge (Service Area 2) on the tax roll, was requested by District 
Engineer Grabbe. Notification of the public hearing on Monday, July 7, 2025, will be published in 
the local newspaper. The resolutions approving the assessments and levies for the FY 2025-26 
tax roll will be presented to the Board for approval at the July 7, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 
and are due to the County by August 10, 2025, stated Mr. Grabbe.  
 

District’s Sewer Service Charges 
 

The sewer service charges and grinder pump maintenance charges for the Woods Valley Ranch 
Sewer Service Areas have been collected annually on the County of San Diego property tax roll 
(tax roll). The service charges, which provide for the operation, annual maintenance, and ultimate 
replacement of the District-owned and operated collection, treatment, and seasonal storage 
facilities, are levied on those properties connected to the wastewater collection system as of the 
end of the fiscal year. These charges consist of the following: 
 

• WVR Service Area 1: 
─ Annual Sewer Service Charge ‒ 5% increase, from $1,183.20 per year per EDU to $1,242 

per year per EDU. 
• WVR Service Area 2: 

─ Annual Sewer Service Charge ‒ 5% increase, from $1,183.20 per year per EDU to $1,242 
per year per EDU. 

─ Annual Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge ‒ 
 Simplex Unit:  5.1% increase from prior year: $642.24 per year per EDU. 
 Duplex Units:  5.1% increase from prior year (see below): 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EDUS ANNUAL FEE 

1 $790.32  

2 $963.84  

3 $1,128.24  

4 $1,285.68  

5 $1,435.08  

6 $1,576.56  

7 $1,709.88  

8 $1,833.60  

9 $1,950.72  

10 $2,059.80  

11 $2,160.84  

12 $2,253.72  

13 $2,337.12  

14 $2,413.92  

15 $2,482.68  

16 $2,543.04  

17 $2,595.72  

18 $2,640.12  

19 $2,675.16  

20 $2,703.36  



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

5   June 2, 2025 

Mr. Grabbe previewed the FY 2025-26 annual assessments for the Woods Valley Ranch Sewer 
Standby Fee, the annual assessments for Assessment District No. 2012-1 (AD 2012-1 / Woods 
Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Project), and the annual special tax levy for Community 
Facilities Distinct No. 2020-1 (CFD 2020-1).  The District's Sewer Service and Grinder Pump 
Maintenance Charge responsibility is $4,854 on based on the 3 EDUS considered connected at 
the Corporate Facility Site with a duplex grinder pump. 
 

Sewer Standby Fee Annual Assessment 
 

Staff recommended the current Annual Sewer Standby Fee ($550.32 per EDU) be continued for 
FY 2025-26 and collected on the County property tax roll. It is levied on those parcels in the 
service area that have a capacity reservation but are not connected to the wastewater collection 
system as of June 30, 2025. The Standby Fee provides funding for the following costs for the 
Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility and Collection System, a) certain fixed 
maintenance cost items, b) operation support, and c) replacement reserve contribution; all of 
which are necessary to maintain a parcel's capacity commitment until the parcel is developed 
and connected to the wastewater collection system.  
 

The Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Service Area is comprised of two separate 
areas, the Woods Valley Service Area ("Service Area 1") and the Woods Valley Ranch Water 
Reclamation Facility Service Area 2 ("Service Area 2"). The District’s Sewer Service Charge 
responsibility is $24,215, based on the capacity commitment of 35 EDUs for the VCMWD Lilac 
Road Site and 9 EDUs of the 12 EDUs allocated to the Corporate Facility Site (3 EDUs are 
considered connected at the Corporate Facility Site). 
 
Assessment District No. 2012-1 Annual Assessment 
 

The annual assessments of AD 2012-1 are used to fund the debt service repayment of the three 
California State Water Resources Control Board SRF Loans and two 1915 Act Limited Obligation 
Improvement Bonds (Bonds) used to finance the Expansion Project and a portion of the Orchard 
Run Lift Station construction. Proposed annual assessments totaling approximately $1.85M are 
estimated for FY 2025-26 (including the CFD 2020-1 share funded from its annual special tax levy). 
Costs for the Expansion project were allocated to seven Benefit Areas (A−G) based on the benefit 
received as defined in the Engineer's report for the assessment district. The Valley Center 
Municipal Water District has a total capacity reservation of 47 EDUs; 35 EDUs reserved for the 
future Lilac Road corporate facility site and 12 EDUs for the Valley Center Road Corporate Facility 
Site. The annual assessment for VCMWD's capacity reservation totals approximately $76,000. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 Special Tax Levy 
 

The amount of the annual CFD 2020-1 Special Tax Levy is set and determined by the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment (RMA) document prepared by Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, 
approved with the formation of the CFD, and allows for a maximum annual increase of 2%.  The 
Special Tax Levy is based on whether the property is undeveloped (without a building permit) or 
developed (with a building permit) as of May 15, 2025. The Special Tax for the developed 
property is further dependent on the characteristics (square footage) of the home permitted for 
the parcel and its development Zone, as defined in the RMA. The Special Tax Levy for FY 2025-
26 is estimated at approximately $909,840. Of this amount, $566,900 is allocated to the CFD 
2020-1's share of AD 2012-1 debt and administration fees, and $236,140 for the Series 2024 
Bond. The remaining balance, $106,800, will be placed in a separate reserve to fund the future 
CFD 2020-1 Series 2 Bond for design and construction on the Woods Valley Ranch WRF Phase 
3 Facilities or possibly Incremental Annual Capacity Transfers from the Indian Creek 
Development, if approved by the Board. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

6   June 2, 2025 

Staff recommended the Board of Directors authorize staff to set a public hearing date for July 7, 
2025 and proceed with the proper notifications to consider collecting the annual sewer service 
charges, fees, assessments, and special taxes on the FY 2025-26 Tax Roll. 
 
Action: Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Stehly; and unanimously carried, motion to set 

public hearing date for July 7, 2025 was approved. 

 
8. Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-15, Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 

Services Agreement with Enterprise Automation for the HMI Migration Project: 
 

District Engineer Grabbe presented background on the Professional Services Agreement (“PSA”) 
with Enterprise Automation (“EA”) for system integration services associated with the Water 

System SCADA/HMI Migration Project.  The District entered into the PSA with EA on May 20, 
2024, for migration of the water system SCADA/HMI software platform from Wonderware’s – 
InTouch product to Inductive Automation’s Ignition product for eight District facility sites. 

 

The current PSA Not-to-Exceed contract amount is $449,93.  The proposed Amendment No. 1 
in the amount of $128,431 would bring the total agreement amount to $578,362. No additional 
funding is required for this amendment. The San Diego County Water Authority will fund their 
respective portion (approximately $13,000), and the remaining amount will be accommodated 
by reallocating existing funds within the approved project budget. 

 

Staff recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-15 approving 
Amendment No. 1 for $128,431 to the professional services agreement with Enterprise 
Automation, resulting in a revised total contract amount of $578,362. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; and unanimously carried, the following 
Resolution was approved: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-15 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT APPROVING 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH ENTERPRISE AUTOMATION FOR THE WATER SYSTEM HMI MIGRATION 

PROJECT - PHASE 1 INTEGRATION [ACCOUNT NO. 01-06-78-51730] 
 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 
 

  AYES: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Smith, Ness, and Stehly 
  NOES: None 

 ABSENT: None 

 
INFORMATION ITEM / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

9. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary: 
 

General Manager Arant provided highlights from the SDCWA’s Board of Directors’ Meeting of 
May 22, 2025 summary. 
 

Action:  Informational item only, no action required. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

7   June 2, 2025 

10. General Information:  
 

General Manager Arant provided highlights of the District’s March Monthly Status Report. 
 

Action:  Informational item only, no action required. 

 
 

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM(S) 
 

None. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

None. 

 
 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

None 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; motion passed unanimously, the regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:39 PM. 

 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 

 
 

 

 

____________________________    _____________________________ 

Kirsten N. Peraino, Secretary       Enrico P. Ferro, President 











VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - SUMMARY

April 30, 2025

ACTIVE DEPOSITS

Checking Accounts
Deposits with Fiscal Agents

TOTAL ACTIVE DEPOSITS

Cost Basis

5480,798.33

$480.798.33

IN\TSTMENTS Market Average
Value Yield Percent

Money Market Funds 521,277,144.16 4.31% 52.319% $21,255,961.62

CAMP Temi $5.20(),690.35 5.16% 12.773% $5,189,430.00

U.S. Treasury Notes 200,080.08 4.27% 0.490% 199,066.73

Federal Agencies Securities 11,508.086.13 4.32% 28.305% 11,499,827.35

Certificates of Deposit, insured 2.509.428.58 4.45% 6.113% 2.483.642.56

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $40,695,429.30 4.43% 100.000% $40,627,928.26

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

TOTAL ALL FUNDS (PRIOR MONTH - MARCH 2025)

$41.108.726.59

$38,497,073.21

Maturity Analysis of Investments

Money Market Funds

Maturity within one year
Maturity later than one year

Total Investments

Weighted Average Days to Maturity
Maximum permitted single investment maturity is 5 years.

Percent

52.319%

18.481%

29.200%

100.000%

99

Cost Basis

521,255.961.62

7,508,276.28

11.863.690.36

$40.627.928.26

Yield Comparatives

Security

LAIF

T Bills

T Bills

Term

1 day
3 months

6 months

Yield

4.281%

4.320%

4.200%

Security

12 mo. rolling T Bond
T Bonds

T Bonds

Term

1 year

1 year
2 years

Yield

4.404%

3.950%

3.780%

Sufficient funds are available to meet the next six month's expenditure requirements. All investments are in compliance with the
District's adopted statement of invesmient policy. Market values for the Governmental / Federal Securities

and Certificates of Deposit were provided by Zions Capital Advisors.

Reviewed by James r Pugh, Treasurer
06/10/25

06/10/25

eceived by Gary T. Aram, General Manager Date

Page 1



ACTIVE DEPOSITS Cost Basis
Checking Accounts:

California Bank & Trust $456,834.60
California Bank & Trust $3,500.00
California Bank & Trust $19,063.73
Petty Cash $1,400.00
Zions

$480,798.33

INVESTMENTS Face Value Purchase Maturity Market Current
or Rating Date Date Value Yield

   Money Market Funds:
Local Agency Investment Fund $7,437,902.68 4.28% $7,437,902.68
County of San Diego Investment Fund $2,691,434.87 3.81% 2,699,690.51
Zions Institutional Liquidity Management $32,184.76 4.23% 32,184.76
CAMP $11,115,621.85 4.45% 11,086,183.67

$21,277,144.16 4.31% $21,255,961.62
  CAMP Term:  

CAMP Term 5,000,000            07/17/24 04/11/25 5,200,690.35 5.16% 5,189,430.00

$5,200,690.35 5.16% $5,189,430.00
  U.S. Treasury Notes:  

U S Treasury Notes 4.250% 200,000               10/19/23 10/15/25 200,080.08 4.27% 199,066.73

$200,080.08 4.27% $199,066.73
  Federal Agencies Securities - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

Federal Home Loan Banks 0.80% 250,000 07/21/21 07/21/25 248,019.86 0.80% $250,000.00
Federal Home Ln Bnk 5.250% 1,000,000 04/12/24 04/10/29 1,007,661.58 5.25% 1,000,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.80% 350,000 03/16/21 03/16/26 340,186.00 0.80% 350,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.00% 125,000 06/30/21 06/30/26 120,875.45 1.00% 125,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.40% 200,000 01/14/25 07/14/26 199,799.15 4.40% 200,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Bks 4.470% 600,000 08/26/24 08/26/26 600,654.39 4.47% 600,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.682% 350,000 08/30/24 08/26/26 349,996.21 4.68% 350,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Bks Bds 4.500% 400,000 09/03/24 09/03/26 400,040.56 4.56% 400,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.05% 250,000 10/15/21 10/15/26 240,199.58 1.05% 250,000.00
Federal Home Ln Bk Bds 4.500% 300,000 11/13/24 11/13/26 300,144.92 4.50% 300,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 3.000% 250,000 04/04/24 02/25/27 246,409.82 3.11% 240,946.33
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.400% 600,000 03/05/25 03/05/27 599,594.43 4.40% 600,000.00
Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.620% 500,000 09/24/24 03/17/27 499,517.21 4.62% 500,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.280% 310,000 03/25/25 03/25/27 310,733.32 4.28% 310,000.00
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 4.500% 550,000 02/03/25 01/28/28 550,834.94 4.50% 549,725.00
Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.375% 700,000 02/28/25 02/25/28 701,390.33 4.38% 700,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.620% 500,000 12/26/24 12/26/28 500,942.31 4.62% 500,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Bank 4.970% 500,000 04/12/24 03/27/29 503,021.62 4.99% 498,250.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 5.00% 1,000,000 07/09/24 07/09/29 1,003,880.48 5.00% 1,000,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.700% 1,000,000 07/30/24 07/30/29 1,007,157.26 4.70% 1,000,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.125% 1,000,000 08/13/24 08/13/29 990,940.22 4.16% 990,906.02
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.930% 500,000 02/25/25 02/25/30 501,307.46 4.93% 500,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 285,000 04/28/25 04/11/30 284,779.03 5.00% 285,000.00

$11,508,086.13 4.32% $11,499,827.35
  Certificates of Deposit - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

HSBC Bank 1.30% 245,000               05/08/20 05/07/25 244,852.24 1.30% 244,939.57
USAA Federal Savings Bank 5.300% 250,000               10/06/23 09/26/25 251,346.13 5.30% 249,937.52
Citibank NA 5.300% 250,000               09/29/23 09/29/25 250,950.38 5.30% 249,934.48
Eastern Svgs Bk Fsb Hunt Vy 5.250% 245,000               10/18/23 10/20/25 246,286.96 5.25% 244,967.98
Federal Svgs Bk Chicago II 4.700% 250,000               06/26/24 06/26/28 254,400.60 4.70% 250,000.00
First Fndtn Bk Irvine Ca 4.600% 250,000               05/10/24 05/10/29 254,098.48 4.60% 250,000.00
Toyota Finl Svgs Bk Hend Nv 4.600% 250,000               05/14/24 05/14/29 254,107.83 4.60% 250,000.00
Customers Bk Phoenixville Pa 4.700% 250,000               06/11/24 06/11/29 255,078.33 4.71% 249,431.16
Sallie Mae Bk Murray Utah 4.500% 250,000               07/17/24 07/17/29 253,307.63 4.51% 249,431.85
Western Alliance Bank 4.150% 245,000               03/28/25 03/27/26 245,000.00 4.15% 245,000.00

$2,509,428.58 4.45% $2,483,642.56

Average
       TOTAL  INVESTMENTS $40,695,429.30 4.428% $40,627,928.26

       TOTAL  ALL  FUNDS $41,108,726.59

April 30, 2025
TREASURER'S REPORT - DETAIL

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Page 2



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

April 30, 2025

$10
$12
$14
$16
$18
$20
$22
$24
$26
$28
$30
$32
$34
$36
$38
$40
$42
$44
$46
$48

$10
$12
$14
$16
$18
$20
$22
$24
$26
$28
$30
$32
$34
$36
$38
$40
$42
$44
$46
$48

Ap
r 2

01
5

O
ct

 2
01

5

Ap
r 2

01
6

O
ct

 2
01

6

Ap
r 2

01
7

O
ct

 2
01

7

Ap
r 2

01
8

O
ct

 2
01

8

Ap
r 2

01
9

O
ct

 2
01

9

Ap
r 2

02
0

O
ct

 2
02

0

Ap
r 2

02
1

O
ct

 2
02

1

Ap
r 2

02
2

O
ct

 2
02

2

Ap
r 2

02
3

O
ct

 2
02

3

Ap
r 2

02
4

O
ct

 2
02

4

Ap
r 2

02
5

Total Investment Portfolio
in Millions

Page 3



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

44,867.00

April 30, 2025

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Ap
r 2

01
5

O
ct

 2
01

5

Ap
r 2

01
6

O
ct

 2
01

6

Ap
r 2

01
7

O
ct

 2
01

7

Ap
r 2

01
8

O
ct

 2
01

8

Ap
r 2

01
9

O
ct

 2
01

9

Ap
r 2

02
0

O
ct

 2
02

0

Ap
r 2

02
1

O
ct

 2
02

1

Ap
r 2

02
2

O
ct

 2
02

2

Ap
r 2

02
3

O
ct

 2
02

3

Ap
r 2

02
4

O
ct

 2
02

4

Ap
r 2

02
5

Investment Portfolio Composition

L.A.I.F. S.D. Co. Treasurer Money Market CDs Govt./Fed. Securities CAMP CAMP Term

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

Page 4



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

April 30, 2025

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Ap
r 2

01
5

O
ct

 2
01

5

Ap
r 2

01
6

O
ct

 2
01

6

Ap
r 2

01
7

O
ct

 2
01

7

Ap
r 2

01
8

O
ct

 2
01

8

Ap
r 2

01
9

O
ct

 2
01

9

Ap
r 2

02
0

O
ct

 2
02

0

Ap
r 2

02
1

O
ct

 2
02

1

Ap
r 2

02
2

O
ct

 2
02

2

Ap
r 2

02
3

O
ct

 2
02

3

Ap
r 2

02
4

O
ct

 2
02

4

Ap
r 2

02
5

Weighted Average Days to Maturity

Page 5



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

44,867.00

April 30, 2025

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

Ap
r 2

01
5

O
ct

 2
01

5

Ap
r 2

01
6

O
ct

 2
01

6

Ap
r 2

01
7

O
ct

 2
01

7

Ap
r 2

01
8

O
ct

 2
01

8

Ap
r 2

01
9

O
ct

 2
01

9

Ap
r 2

02
0

O
ct

 2
02

0

Ap
r 2

02
1

O
ct

 2
02

1

Ap
r 2

02
2

O
ct

 2
02

2

Ap
r 2

02
3

O
ct

 2
02

3

Ap
r 2

02
4

O
ct

 2
02

4

Ap
r 2

02
5

Yield Comparisons
in Percentages

VCMWD LAIF Int. 12-mo. rolling T-Bond

Page 6



INVESTMENTS PURCHASED

Purchase Maturity Face Expected
Date Security Date Cost Value Yield

CAMP, CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 
07/09/24 Federal home Loan Banks 5.00% 07/09/29 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 5.000%
07/17/24 Sallie Mae Bk Murray Utah 4.50% 07/17/29 249,375.00 250,000.00 4.500%
07/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.70% 07/30/29 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 4.700%
07/17/24 CAMP Term 5.16% 04/11/25 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5.160%
08/26/24 Federal Farm Credit Bks 5.460% 08/26/26 600,000.00 600,000.00 5.460%
08/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.520% 08/26/26 350,000.00 350,000.00 5.520%
08/13/24 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.125% 08/13/29 1,000,000.00 990,000.00 4.125%
08/16/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.00% 08/21/24 500,000.00 499,636.11 0.000%
09/03/24 Federal Farm Credit Bks Bds 5.500% 09/03/26 400,000.00 400,000.00 5.500%
09/24/24 Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.620% 03/17/27 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.620%
09/27/24 Federal Home Ln Bks 4.570% 03/20/26 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.570%
10/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.750% 04/28/26 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.750%
11/12/24 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 11/12/27 500,000.00 500,000.00 5.000%
11/13/24 Federal Home Ln Bk Bds 4.500% 11/13/26 300,000.00 300,000.00 4.500%
12/26/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.620% 12/26/28 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.620%
01/14/25 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.400% 07/14/26 200,000.00 200,000.00 4.400%
02/03/25 Federal Natl Mtg Assn 4.500% 01/28/28 550,000.00 549,725.00 4.500%
02/25/25 Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.930% 02/25/30 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.930%
02/28/25 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.375% 02/25/30 700,000.00 700,000.00 4.375%
03/05/25 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.400% 03/05/27 600,000.00 600,000.00 4.400%
03/25/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.280% 03/25/27 310,000.00 310,000.00 4.280%
03/28/25 Western Alliance Bank 4.150% 03/27/26 245,000.00 245,000.00 4.150%
04/28/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 04/11/30 285,000.00 285,000.00 5.000%

INVESTMENTS MATURED

Purchase Maturity Face Yield to
Date Security Date Cost Value Maturity

CAMP, CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 
04/17/24 Federal Home Ln Mtg Cp Adj 6.050% 07/17/24 500,000.00 500,000.00 6.050%
10/30/23 Federal Home Loan Bank Cons 5.600% 07/30/24 400,000.00 400,000.00 5.600%
07/29/21 Medallion Bank 0.40% 07/22/24 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.400%
08/16/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.00% 08/21/24 500,000.00 499,636.11 0.000%
08/30/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.500% 08/28/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.500%
08/28/23 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.500% 08/28/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 5.500%
08/22/23 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.450% 09/20/24 500,000.00 500,000.00 5.450%
03/24/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.50% 09/24/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.500%
09/30/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.50% 09/30/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.500%
09/03/21 Synchrony Bank 0.55% 09/03/24 125,000.00 125,000.00 0.550%
04/24/23 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.00% 10/24/24 40,000.00 40,000.00 5.000%
01/27/23 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.15% 10/28/24 480,000.00 479,850.12 5.150%
11/04/20 Federal Farm Credit Bank 0.44% 11/04/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.440%
05/11/22 UBS Bank 3.00% 11/12/24 120,000.00 119,999.87 3.000%
03/10/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 3.500% 12/10/24 500,000.00 499,944.71 3.500%
11/30/23 Cross Riv Bk Teaneck N J 5.500% 12/30/24 164,000.00 163,933.99 5.500%
10/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.750% 01/28/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.750%
11/12/24 Federal Hom Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 02/12/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 5.000%
02/18/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.40% 02/18/25 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.400%
09/27/24 Federal Home Ln Bks 4.570% 02/20/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.570%
05/27/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.625% 02/27/25 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.625%
05/27/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.625% 02/27/25 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.625%
03/14/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 2.15% 03/14/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.150%
07/27/20 Morgan Stanley 1.500% 04/16/25 230,000.00 230,000.00 1.500%

JULY 1, 2024 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025
TREASURER'S REPORT - TRANSACTIONS

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Page 7



 

June 16, 2025  

  
            
TO:  Honorable President and Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Gary Arant, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION, SUPPORTING CAROL LEE 

GONZALES-BRADY, RANCHO CALIFORNIA WATER DISTRICT, FOR 
NOMINATION AS CANDIDATE FOR THE OFFICE OF ACWA VICE PRESIDENT 

  

  
PURPOSE: 
 

To seek Board adoption of Resolution No. 2025-16 supporting the nomination of Carol Lee 
Gonzales-Brady, Rancho California Water District, as a candidate for the office of ACWA 
Vice President. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

ACWA has launched the election process for the 2026-’27 term for President, Vice President, 
and region board members. This year, the election process for officers and region boards is 
combined. Voting for both sets of candidates will be done electronically by your designated 
voter on a single ballot.  
 

Staff has received a request from the Rancho California Water District for VCMWD to adopt a 
resolution supporting the nomination of Carol Lee Gonzales-Brady, as candidate for the office 
of ACWA Vice President.  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

After review and discussion, consider adoption of Resolution No. 2025-16, supports Carol Lee 
Gonzales-Brady for nomination as a candidate for the office of ACWA Vice President. 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Gary Arant  
General Manager 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

• Resolution No. 2025-16 
 

 
 











 

June 16, 2025 
             
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Gary Arant, General Manager  
 
SUBJECT: MUTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PROPOSAL FOR STATE AND 

FEDERAL REPRESENTATION 
   
PURPOSE: 
 

Opportunity for the Board to review and approve “Exhibit A – State and Federal Representation 
Services” to the Mutual Services Agreement (Agreement) between Fallbrook PUD (FPUD), 
Rainbow MWD (RMWD), Yuima MWD (YMWD) and Valley Center Municipal Water District. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

In February of 2025, the Board authorized the General Manager, subject to review and approval 
by the General Counsel, to execute the Agreement between VCMWD, FPUD, RMWD, and 
YMWD.  That agreement was executed by the General Manager on March 5, 2025. 
 

As an outgrowth of the Agreement, the four agencies sought proposals for joint State and 
Federal representation services as described in Exhibit “A” (copy attached).  The only proposals 
submitted came from Fernandez, Jensen, and Kimmelshue (FJK) for State representation 
and the RBW Group (RBW) for Federal Representation (copies attached).   
 

As part of the proposals, FJK requested a fee of $10,000 per month, and RBW, $15,000 per 
month, for total cost of $300,000 per year.  This total will be allocated among four agencies at 
$75,000 per year. VCMWD will request $100,000 for State and Federal Representation in the 
FY 2025-26 Budget, which includes its share of the fees, an allocation for expenses and an 
allowance for contingency funding.   
 

The signatory agencies will continue to evaluate other opportunities for joint projects to increase 
operational efficiency and reduce operational cost and bring those forward in the future.   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

After review and discussion, if so desired, approve Exhibit “A” to the Mutual Services Agreement 
Between FPUD, RMWD, YMWD and VCMWD. 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  
 
 

    
_________________________  
Gary Arant 
General Manager 
 
 
Attached:  
 

• Mutual Services Agreement, Exhibit “A,” State and Federal Representation 
• Representation Proposals from FJK and RBW 










































	Agenda - Monday, June 16, 2025 — 2:00 P.M.
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 2, 2025
	2. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements
	3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending April 30, 2025
	SUMMARY
	DETAIL
	GRAPHS (1)
	GRAPHS (2)
	GRAPHS (3)
	GRAPHS (4)
	TRANSACTIONS

	4. Request Approval of Resolution No. 2025-16 Supporting the Nomination of Carol LeeGonzales-Brady, Rancho California Water District, for the Office of ACWA Vice President
	5. Public Hearing to Review Status of Vacant Positions as Required by AB 2561
	6. Implementation Schedule for the Proposed SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge for the FY2025-26 Budget
	7. Request Approval of Mutual Services Agreement Exhibit A – State and Federal Representation
	8. Energy Program Overview

